

**Directorate: National Water Planning** 

# Development of a Reconciliation Strategy for the Luvuvhu and Letaba Water Supply System

## STUDY STEERING COMMITTEE - MEETING 5

### **Draft Minutes**

DATE: TIME: VENUE:

Friday, 20 June 2014 09:00 – 13:00 Tzaneen Country Lodge, Tzaneen

	1.	WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION	ACTION			
		The Chairperson and Study Manager, Mr Tendani Nditwani (Department: of Water and Sanitation (DWS)) welcomed all members to the fifth meeting of the Study Steering Committee (SSC) for the development of the Luvuvhu and Letaba Water Supply System Reconciliation Strategy (LLRS).				
		He advised all members of the committee that this meeting was the last meeting of the SSC since the work of the committee is nearing its end with the completion of the proposed Reconciliation Strategy. He also made members aware of the new demarcation of Water Management Areas (WMAs) and said that in future the Letaba catchment will be part of the Olifants WMA and the Luvuvhu catchment will be part of the Limpopo WMA. He assured the meeting that these new arrangements will not have an impact on the finalisation of the strategy.				
		Mr Nditwani also reminded members of the department's name change – from the Department; of Water Affairs to the Department; of Water and Sanitation (DWS). Although the departmental logo has not changed <u>yet</u> , the new name is in use and the inclusion of sanitation services is being internalised within the department.				
		Mr Nditwani thanked all members of the SSC for their attendance and invited contribution to the compilation of the proposed strategy which is in the last stages of its development. He mentioned that the study will be followed up by a maintenance study which will assist to implement the recommendations of the Reconciliation Strategy.				
		(All presentations presented at the meeting will be saved on the DWS web site. Visit the study website <a href="http://www.dwa.gov.za/Projects/Luvuvhu/default.aspx">http://www.dwa.gov.za/Projects/Luvuvhu/default.aspx</a> for more information.)		Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No		
	2.	ATTENDANCE AND APOLOGIES		underline, Font color: Blue, English (United Kingdom)		
		Appendix A provides a list of attendants and apologies received.				
	3.	MEETING OBJECTIVES				
=		Mr Nditwani reiterated the objectives of this study which are to address the growing water demand in the study area, identify serious water problems, identify resource development options, provide reconciliation interventions (structural and administrative/regulatory) and facilitate communication and strengthen the partnership between the DWS and key stakeholders.				
		He stated that after the finalisation of the Reconciliation Strategy a continuation study ( <u>also</u> known as a maintenance study) will commence and the identified measures will be implemented as part of the <u>maintenance</u> study_ <u>and that further S</u> stakeholder participation <u>in the Strategy</u> Steering Committee will be required for this the continuation taskstudy.		Formatted: Font: Bold, No underline Font color: Auto, English (United		
		Mr Nditwani asked all members to focus on the main objective of this meeting – to discuss the proposed Reconciliation Strategy. He said that the proposed strategy as presented at the meeting will be compiled in a document and that this report will be sent to all members of the		Kingdom)  Formatted: Font: Bold, No underline Font color: Auto, English (United Kingdom)		

LLRS - SSC 5 - Draft Minutes

	SSC committee for review and comment.	
4.	ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA	
	The agenda was accepted.	
5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES	
	The minutes were approved with the correction of a few spelling errors and typographical changes.	
6.	MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES (SSC 4 ON 21 November 2013)	
	There were no matters arising which were not covered by an item on the agenda.	
7.	STATUS AND RECAP SINCE THE PREVIOUS MEETING	
	Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) presented the history and the milestones reached in this study, the steps taken thus far as well as an overview of the progress made.	
	He reminded stakeholders that this was the last SSC meeting and that comments from all are welcome in the finalisation of the strategy.	
8.	PROGRESS ON STUDY TASKS	
8.1	Overview	
	Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) informed members of the progress made with the various tasks in the study and focussed on tasks completed and tasks still in progress. He said the study is on time and that satisfactory progress is being made. He presented a list of all the available reports and reminded members that the draft reports were sent to them for their comments. Reports can also be accessed on the web site.	
9.	PROPOSED RECONCILIATION STRATEGY	
	Mr Pieter van Rooyen and Mr Manie Maré (Study Team members) presented the proposed Reconciliation Strategy for the Letaba Luvuvhu and Mutale catchments covering the following points:  • Water requirement scenarios • Yield analysis • Options for reconciliation • Water balance individual dams/systems • Reconciliation scenarios • Proposed Reconciliation Strategy • Recommendations	
	Discussion	
9a	Mr Pieter de Witt (Limpopo Department of Agriculture) asked if the irrigation demand for from the Middel Letaba Dam is included in the calculations presented. Mr Pieter van Rooyen (Study Team) responded by sayingthat the balances that which were presented incorporate a small volume for irrigation. He further mentioned that the presented results show that all the available water from Middle Letaba Dam is needed for current and future domestic supply. Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWS) confirmed that there is limited water available in the Middle Letaba and Nsami dams to meet domestic water needs. He referred to an application for a proposed irrigation project that was not accepted due to the limited insufficient water available in the system.	
9b	Mr Pieter de Witt (Limpopo Department of Agriculture) mentioned that the Limpopo Department of Agriculture has recently done a groundwater study and enquired whether the desktop study done by the Study Team correlates with that information? Mr Pieter van Rooyen responded that Mr Karim Sami (member of the Study Team) has the information on groundwater irrigation use and that with the completion of the validation study in the area the information may be differentchange. Comments on the new information will be requested.	
9c	Mr Toni Muller (Polokwane Local Municipality) commented that the understanding is that there is no more available water for the municipality's requirements, however the municipality is advised that available water from Dap Naudé Dam and Ebenezer Dam is not fully used. The municipality SSC 5 - Draft Minutes	

LLRS – SSC 5 - Draft Minutes

		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	has difficulty to understand the presentation delivered by the Study Team and the numbers presented in comparison to the information that was received from another consultant. Mr Pieter van Rooyen and Mr Manie Maré (Study Team members) explained that the dams cannot be viewed in isolation as it is part of the greater Letaba River system. The abstraction of water at these dams is already at their maximum. If it seems (from the figures presented) that there is some water available in dam storage, the this water is used for downstream support. Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water User Association) cautioned that the operating rules for each dam and the system should be considered as it provides certain assurances. He said that one user sector should not be restricted to the advantage of another sector user. He stated that the requirements of Polokwane and other users cannot be supported with the resources of the Ebenezer Dam. He asked that this be stated clearly in the proposed Reconciliation Strategy.	
9d	Mr Pieter de Witt (Limpopo Department of Agriculture) referred to the information presented on the Magoebaskloof and Vergelegen balance with regards to the unused irrigation allocation and the requirements for domestic use. He said that what was presented shows additional water available for domestic use; however it seems that the water is taken from the irrigation allocation to farmers. He asked whether the additional water required for domestic use cannot rather be taken from the Tzaneen Dam or Nwamitwa Dam? Mr Pieter van Rooyen (Study Team) explained that the information presented shows results of what could happen if a certain scenario is followed – therefore it is a tool to assist decision-making. Mr De Witt said that his department has reservations with this specific information, and would request that a broader base approach is followed.	
9e	Mr JP Shilowa (Greater Tzaneen Municipality) noted that the municipality has a challenge to support all the water demands in the municipal area. He said that the municipality has applied for additional water from the Tzaneen and Ebenezer Dams. The municipality would like to understand what resources are available to them to enable future planning. Mr Pieter van Rooyen (Study Team) responded that water was allowed to meet the growth expected in the Tzaneen municipal area. He said that a report with the information on demand and return flows was compiled and will be sent to the municipality for comments. Mr Van Rooyen invited Mr Shilowa to contact him for further discussions. Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water User Association) stated that additional burden cannot be placed on the resources of the Magoebaskloof Dam.  Mr Andries Munzhedzi (DWS) explained that the water allocation to the Tzaneen municipality was done in the middle 1980's and since then the municipality has expanded its footprint over many private properties which it has bought. He said many of these properties had water allocations and he suggested to the municipality to investigate which of the properties bought	
	after the 1980's had irrigation rights. Mr Pieter van Rooyen (Study Team) cautioned that irrigation rights cannot just be transferred to domestic needs as the level of assurance is different (domestic water supply has higher assurance) – therefore the volumes cannot of water for irrigation must just be converted to equivalent volumes for domestic supply.	
9f	Mr Andrew Mongwe (Letaba Water User Association) said that the emerging farmers downstream of the Eiland holiday resort do not have water. Mr Pieter van Rooyen (Study Team) said that the water requirements for emerging farmers have been included in the balances and form part of the operating rule (policy). He added that in some cases the existing water allocations to emerging farmers are currently not used.	
9g	Mr Willem du Toit (DWS) said that groundwater in the Letaba catchment is increasingly seen to be an option for utilisation, however he cautioned against the high levels of nitrogen in the groundwater in some areas, which he believes is caused by the impacts of poor sanitation on surface ground and surface water. He said that people should guard-protect their water resources against pollution and that treatment of water comes at a great cost. Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) responded that the groundwater specialist included the water resources and volumes of potential potable resources which could be harvested, by taking into account the water quality.	
9h	Mr MJ Mahwasane (Vhembe District Municipality) said that there is a demand for water from agriculture in the Nandoni Dam area as well as for the domestic sector along the road to Punda Maria. He said that irrigation over the past two to three years in the Vondo Dam area is taking place and the full water allocation to that sector is being used. He asked that the town of Makhado be shown on the maps when the Nandoni Dam area is discussed, as the agriculture and other sectors are active in Makhado. He proposed that the construction of the proposed Rambuda Dam (on the Mutale River) should start sooner rather than later, as it will assist with the growing irrigation needs in the area of the proposed dam. Mr Andries Munzhedzi (DWS) reported that the Makhuvha community also requested a water allocation from the Vondo Dam	

		and asked whether their need cannot be included for the proposed yield potentially from Rambuda Dam. Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) said that the proposed dam (Rambuda) is upstream of the community and that if the downstream (alternative dam) (Tswera) is build, pumping water upstream may be too costly. Mr Pieter de Witt (Limpopo Department of Agriculture) said for the Tshiombo scheme the planting of one crop for the whole season is planned, however if assurance of supply can be somewhat higher, two crops per season can be planted. Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) added that sufficient information is required to be able to motivate the construction of a dam in the Mutale River. It is therefore very important that the Vhembe municipality and the Tribal Council provide the previously requested details on the planned future developments within the Mutale area to serve as motivation for a possible dam to be considered in the Mutale River system.	
=	9i	Mr Pieter de Witt (Limpopo Department of Agriculture) said that the allocation from Nandoni Dam for irrigation will easily be taken up. Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) responded that this information was included in the current water balance prepared for Nandoni Dam.	
	9j	Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWS) commented that he is concerned about the proposed dams on the Mutale system as DWS has done studies in the past and the construction of a dam in the system then did not seem feasible. Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) responded that the Study Team is aware of the feasibility study that was done, but commented that the updated hydrology shows potential for higher flows and related yields, therefore making the option more feasible.  He added that the previous studies showed there are foundation difficulties at the proposed Rambuda Dam and only a relative small dam can be constructed. He said the recommendation is to rather construct one dam in the system, which then could be the Tswera Dam just downstream that does not have foundation problems.	
	9k	Mr Witek Jewezki Jezewski (DWS) cautioned that the Paswane and Xikundu dam options may will have serious environmental impacts as information is available on the Xikundu weir where a fish ladder already had to be constructed to ensure free movement of fish species. Mr Manie Maré (Study Team) confirmed that for this reason, these two options were not included in the proposed strategy, although they both produce high yields with low URVs.	
	91	Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water User Association) asked what in the proposed strategy has been earmarked for international commitments. Mr Manie Maré responded that the calculations presented do not include any international commitments as such. Releases for environmental purposes were however included and should cover part of the international commitments. Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) confirmed and commented that international obligations still have to be negotiated and it is only South Africa that regards environmental flows. He stated that there are no agreements in the specific flows that should cross the border for international obligations. Mr Louis van Rooyen requested that the statement that no international obligations have been included in the proposed strategy be stated clearly.	
=	10.	LINKAGES WITH OTHER PROCESSES OR INITIATIVES IN THE STUDY AREAS	
	Classification of water resources and the determination of Resource Quality Objective the Letaba catchment		
		Mr Rufus Nengovhela (DWS) presented an overview on the status of the classification of water resources and the determination of Resource Quality Objectives in the Letaba catchment. This study is reaching its conclusion and the results of the process were presented at a public meeting on 12 June 2014. The proposed Management Classes and Resource Quality Objectives will in due course be gazetted for further public review and comment.	
	10.2	Groot Letaba River Water Development Project (GLeWaP)	
Ī		Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWS) reported that the position of the Project Manager for the project to raise the Tzaneen Dam wall is vacant and he is not sure when the position will be filled. He stated that the activities such as the design of the dam wall are underway even in the absence of a Project Manager. The Department of Water and Sanitation is responsible for the hydrological calculations and the building of the physical model which will be tested at the Department's laboratory by early July 2014.	
		Mr van den Berg said that the Environmental Management Programme (EMPR) for the construction of the Nwamitwa Dam was resubmitted to the Department of Environmental Affairs and that the Department of Water and Sanitation is awaiting approval. He explained that the	

LLRS – SSC 5 - Draft Minutes

approval of the EMPR is required for the geotechnical investigations to be conducted. The results of the geotechnical investigations inform the dam design. Tenders will shortly be advertised for the geotechnical work. All activities related to the geotechnical work will be planned in advance with the landowners. In terms of land procurement the department had to do several calculations to determine the back-water line. Mr van den Berg said that a land evaluator will be appointed towards the end of 2014. Consultation with land owners will take place in preparation for this step. A stakeholder meeting was held in April 2014 and issues such as the proposed venue of the construction camp, principles of employment and the project charter were discussed. He also said that the use of surface- and groundwater conjunctively will be investigated in more detail. He said that the feasibility study is underway to for drilling and connecting wells to the proposed infrastructure that which is part of the Nwamitwa project Project and to look investig at artificial recharge of the groundwater sources. He noted that the focus will be more on passive recharge. He said the field work will start soon. The institutional arrangements with regards to the usage of the groundwater resources will be part of the work done for the feasibility study. He mentioned that the institutional arrangements are critical for the longer term success of such Discussion 10.2 a Mr JP Shilowa (Greater Tzaneen Municipality) asked when will the construction of the Tzaneen Dam wall raising start? Mr Ockie van den Berg (DWS) responded that May 2014 was the starting date, but it has passed. He said that he is not sure certain of what the new proposed starting date is. He said, as previously discussed, the water level of the dam will have to be lowered (to about 60% capacity) for the construction process and that will be communicated to downstream water users and landowners in time. 10.3 Verification and validation Mr Andries Munzhedzi (DWS) gave an overview of the background of the project to verify and validate water use in the Letaba and Luvuvhu catchment. He stated a number of challenges that were faced with this project, among others the number of Return-to-Sender envelopes that the Department received back. He said the professional services provider's contract ends in December 2014 and that Departmental personnel are also being trained to further the work involved in the process of verification and validation. Mr Munzhedzi also said that it is proposed that when the contract term is completed to align the outstanding work with the process for the Olifants Water Management Area. Discussion 10.3 a Mr Louis van Rooyen (Letaba Water User Association) and Mr André Venter (Letaba Water User Association) noted that they received invoices from the DWS for water used, however no further communication from the DWS in terms of the verification and registration process. Mr van Rooyen mentioned that he visited the Department's Polokwane office to try to find out where the information is held up. Mr Andries Munzhedzi (DWS) responded that most of the communication is sent from Mr Venter and he requested Mr Van Rooyen to take up the matter with Mr Venter. Continuation of the Olifants River Reconciliation Strategy 10.4 Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) presented the progress made with the maintenance of the Reconciliation Strategy for the Olifants River. He noted that a Reconciliation Strategy for the Olifants Water Management Area was developed and completed in 2012 and is currently in its first phase of implementation and maintenance. Mr Nditwani highlighted the fact that the Letaba catchment is to become part of the Olifants Water Management Area and therefore it is important that the Letaba stakeholders understand the linkage between these two catchments. 10.5 Operating Rules for the Letaba Luvuvhu Water Supply System Mr Isaac Nyatlo (DWS) presented the need and mandate to develop and use operating rules to manage water resources (dams / groundwater schemes / both systems). He noted that the work done in this study will form the basis of developing the rules. He reported that the Terms of References for the Letaba and Luvuvhu River systems have been approved and that the procurement processes are underway. The Terms of Reference for the Annual Operating Rules for the Olifants River system is in the process of being approved.

Comment [n1]: It cannot possibly be Mr André Venter of LWUA. Would it be Mr Jakkie Venter of DWS?

Comment [n2]: It cannot possibly be Mr André Venter of LWUA. Would it be Mr Jakkie Venter of DWS?

Comment [n3]: ToR for the Luvuvhu and Letaba Water Supply System Annual Operating Rules

ſ			
Ī	11.	GENERAL	
		Mr Shilowa, (Greater Tzaneen Municipality) asked whether Tzaneen can be assisted with funding to comply to the required Water Conservation and Water Demand Management (WC/WDM) measures? Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) responded that funding of this maybe available on funding grants such as the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) etc. but this has to be investigated. Mr Isaac Nyatlo (DWS) advised that the municipality should keep the proposed funds to be spent on WC/WDM on the municipal budget. Mr Andries Munzhedzi (DWS) mentioned that the DWS has a budget towards water use efficiency at their national office. Mr Shilowa was advised to speak to a DWS official after the meeting.	
	12.	DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING	
		Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) explained that this meeting was the last Strategy Steering Committee (SSC) meeting for the development of the Reconciliation Strategy. A public meeting will be held towards the end of 2014 to present the final preliminary strategy to stakeholders. SSC members will also be notified of the date and venue of the public meeting.	
		For the next phase of the study – the maintenance continuation phase, the Department will procure the services of a Professional Service Provider (PSP). A Strategy Steering Committee	
		(SSC) will be established to guide the maintenance continuation phase and to ensure that the recommendations of the Reconciliation Strategy are implemented. Stakeholders will be contacted by the PSP for the maintenance continuation phase for the reconvening of the SSC. This may is likely likely to take place in September 2015.	
	13.	MAY FORWARD AND CLOSURE  Mr Tendani Nditwani (DWS) clarified that the comments from SSC members will be incorporated in terms of the finalisation of the preliminary Reconciliation Strategy. The strategy document will be made available for further comments before it is presented to the public towards the end of 2014.	
		The following recommendations were made for follow-up work and future studies:	
		<ul> <li>Consider information from the water use validation and verification study as an estimate of possible unlawful water use.</li> </ul>	
		<ul> <li>Commission Classification study on the Luvuvhu and Mutale rivers.</li> </ul>	
		Commission Feasibility studies on groundwater development in relevant areas.	
		<ul> <li>Continuous integration between Water Balances and water supply planning to water services schemes</li> </ul>	
		Mr Nditwani thanked members of the SSC for their contributions and assistance in the development of the proposed Luvuvhu and Letaba Water Supply System Reconciliation Strategy.	

Formatted: Font: Bold, No underline, Font color: Auto, English (United Kingdom)

#### Appendix A: List of Attendants

Fideus Baloyi Engineer Planning

Department of Water and Sanitation

Main 015 290 1218 Cell 071 482 4467

Email:

baloyif@dwa.gov.za

Enny Baloyi

Business Development Officer

Lepelle Northern Water

ennyb@lepelle.co.za Email:

Pieter de Witt Senior Manager

Department of Agriculture, Limpopo

Private Bag X9487 POLOKWĂNE 0700

Email: dewittp@agric.limpopo.gov.za

Willem du Toit Scientist Manager

Department of Water and Sanitation

P O Box 118 POLOKWANE 0700

Email: DutoitW2 @dwa.gov.za

Martinus Gouws Agricultural Engineer

Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

Private Bag X9487

Email:

POLOKWĂNE 0700

gouwsmj@agric.limpopo.gov.za

Paul Herbst Directorate: Water use Efficiency Department of Water and Sanitation

Private Bag X313 PRETORIĂ 0001

Email: HerbstP@dwa.gov.za

Witek Jezewski Engineer Department of Water and Sanitation

Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001

Email: JezewskiW@dwa.gov.za Main 015 295 1847

TEL 015 294 3367

FAX 015 291-1856 CELL 082 954 3444

TEL 015 280 1262 FAX 086 273 5400

CELL 082 808 6386

TEL 015 294 3539

FAX 015 295 5003/8754 CELL 082 955 3996 082 900 2490

> TEL (012) 336 7043 FAX (012) 392 1453

082 804 3002

CELL

TEL 012 336 8160 FAX (012) 336 8295

CELL 082 412 4737 CELL 082 809 5609 Martha Komape Water Regulation and Use: Director Department of Water and Sanitation Private Bag X9506 POLOKWANE 0699 TEL (015) 295 1463/3249 FAX (015) 295 3217 CELL 082 941 7965

Email: KomapeM@dwa.gov.za

Anelle Lotter Public Participation Practitioner Jones & Wagener PO Box 1434 RIVONIA 2128 TEL (012) 667-4860 CELL 082 804 5890

EMAIL: anelle@jaws.co.za

Livhuwani Mabuda CD: Integrated Water Resource Planning Department of Water and Sanitation PRETORIA 0001 Main 012 336-8779 Fax 012 336-6863 CELL 082 805 9139

Email: MabudaL@dwa.gov.za

MJ Mahwasane Manager Water Demand and Construction

Vhembe District Municipal

Main 015 960 3080 Cell 083 256 6657

Email: mahwasanem@vhembe.gov.za

Manie Maré WRP Consulting Engineers (Pty) Ltd P O Box 1522 BROOKLYN SQUARE 0075 TEL (012) 346 3496 FAX (012) 346 9956 CELL 082 326 9378

Email: maniem@wrp.co.za

Zakes Masilana Planning Manager Department of Water and Sanitation Private Bag 9677 GIYANI 0826 TEL (015) 812-0090 CELL 082 809 5129

Email: masilanaz@dwa.gov.za

Ndileka Mohapi Director: RDM Department of Water and Sanitation Private Bag X313 PRETORIA 0001 TEL 012 336 8234 FAX 012 336 8813 CELL 082 806 5303

Email: MohapiN@dwa.gov.za

Maggy Moloto Manager

Coghsta Municipal Infrastructure Development

Main 015 284 5417 Cell 082 954 7304

Email:

molotomm@coghsta.limpopo.gov.za

TA Mongwe

WRP Consulting Engineers

Cell 082 057 2142

078 690 0314

Email:

andrewmongwe58@gmail.com

Alidzulwi Mudau

TEL 015 294 7700

Office of the Premier

Email: mudauf@premier.limpopo.gov.za

Tonie Muller

Manager: Urban Water and Sanitation Polokwane Local Municipality

PO Box 111

POLOKWANE 0700

TEL 015 290 2237/2077

086 613 9626 FAX

**CELL** 083 666 4091

Email: toniem@polokwane.gov.za

Andries Munzhedzi Acting Chief Engineer

Department of Water and Sanitation

*TZANEEN* 

TEL (015) 290 1200

FAX (015) 295 3249

CELL 082 809 2160

Email:

MunzhedziA @dwa.gov.za

Tshilidzi Nelwamondo

Department of Cooperative Governance and

Traditional Affiars P O Box 2671

LEBOWAKGOMO 0737

TEL (015) 254-5304

FAX (015) 295-4701

CELL 083 358 2670

Email:

nelwamondot@coghsta.limpopo.gov.za

Rufus Nengovhela Production Scientist

Department of Water and Sanitation

Private Bag X313

TEL (012) 336 7886/7854

FAX (086) 587-3978 **CELL** 084 738 7910

PRETORIA 0001

Email: NengovhelaR@dwa.gov.za Norman Nokeri Business Development Lepelle Northern Water Private Bag X9522 POLOKWANE 0700 TEL (015) 295 1900 CELL 072 980 6959

Email: normann@lepelle.co.za

Isaac Nyatlo Chief Industrial Technician Department of Water and Sanitation P O Box 15239 FLORA PARK 0699 TEL 012 336 7582 CELL 082 805 6384

TEL 012 846 8602

TEL (015) 290 1200

FAX (015) 295 3249

082 885 9549

Email: nyatloi@dwa.gov.za

Freddy Rabothata
Assistant Director
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries
Techno 1

141 Cresswell Road SILVERTON 0127 ture, Forestry and Fisheries FAX 012 846 8576 CELL 072 433 5763

Email: FreddyR@daff.gov.za

Steven Shibambu
Department of Water and Sanitation
Private Bag X2509
POLOKWANE 0700

Email: shibambus@dwa.gov.za

Sydney Shikwambana Technician Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries Techno 1 141 Cresswell Road SILVERTON 0127

Email: SydneyS@daff.gov.za

JP Shilowa Head of Water and Sanitation Greater Tzaneen Local Municipality P O Box 70 TZANEEN 0850 TEL 015 307 8224 CELL 079 905 9013

Email: paradise.shilowa@tzaneen.gov.za

Dumisani Shitlangu Director: Environmental Affairs Mopani District Municipality Private Bag X9687 GIYANI 0826 TEL (015) 811 6300 FAX (015) 812 4301

Email: mabundal@mopani.gov.za

Tersia Strydom Junior Scientisct SanParks

Email:

tercia.strydom@sanparks.org

Archinton Thobejane Director Department of Water and Sanitation

Private Bag X313 PRETORIĂ 0001

thobejanea@dwa.gov.za Email:

Brian Tlakula Business Analyst Lepelle Northern Water

Email: briant@lepelle.co.za

Ockie van den Berg Chief Engineer Department of Water and Sanitation Private Bag X313

PRETORIĂ 0001

Email: vanderbergo@dwa.gov.za

Sanet van Jaarsveld Engineer Department of Water and Sanitation

Private Bag X313 PRETORIĂ 0001

Email:

Email: vanjaarsvelds@dwa.gov.za

Lonis Van Rooyen

Ijvanrooyen@mweb.co.za

Pieter van Rooyen Director WRP Consulting Engineers

P O Box 1522 BROOKLYN SQUARE 0075

Email: pieterv@wrp.co.za

Andre Venter Executive Officer Letaba Water Users Association PO Box 1220

TZANEEN 0850

Main 013 735 4024 Cell 073 505 2265

TEL 012 336 7869

FAX 012 336 8577 **CELL** 082 903 4218

Main 015 295 1907

TEL 012 336 8613/8300 FAX 012 336 7399 CELL 082 809 2011 012 336 7500

Switchboard

TEL (012) 336-7284 FAX (012) 336 7399 CELL 079 510 8523

Main 083 621 6007

TEL (012) 346 3496 FAX (012) 346 9956

082 321 3446 CELL

TEL 015 307 2651

FAX 015 307 2651 CELL 082 680 7000

lwgv@absamail.co.za Email:

LLRS - SSC 5 - Draft Minutes

11

Jacques Venter Bio-Technician South African National Parks Private Bag X1021 PHALABORWA 1390 TEL 013 735 3546 FAX 013 735 3544

Email: jacques.venter@sanparks.org

Pieter Viljoen
Deputy Director
Department of Water and Sanitation
Private Bag X313
PRETORIA 0001

TEL (012) 336 7514 FAX (086) 620-6472 CELL 082 808 0497

Email: viljoenp2 @dwa.gov.za

Pieter Vorster Voorsitter: Constantia WGV Water Gebruikersvereniging/Mahela Boerdery: Constantia Posbus 114 LETSITELE 0885 TEL 015 345 1600/250 FAX 015 345 1601 CELL 083 259 5511

Email: pieter@mahela.co.za

#### **Apology list:**

CELL 078 802 2234

Mr Hannes Enslin Planning Forester Northern Timbers (Pty) Ltd P O Box 1343 TZANEEN 0850

Email: hannese@merensky.co.za

 Ms Martha Komape
 TEL
 (015) 295 1463/3249

 Water Regulation and Use: Director
 FAX
 (015) 295 3217

 Department of Water and Sanitation
 CELL
 082 941 7965

Private Bag X9506 POLOKWANE 0699

Email: KomapeM@dwa.gov.za

Mr Tim Maake TEL (015) 811 6300
Municipal Manager FAX (015) 812 4301
Mopani District Municipality
Private Bag X9687

Email: basa@mopani.gov.za Email: tim@mopani.gov.za

 Mr Livhuwani Mabuda
 Main
 012 336-8779

 CD: Integrated Water Resource Planning
 Fax
 012 336-6863

 Department of Water and Sanitation
 CELL
 082 805 9139

PRETORIA 0001

GIYANI 0826

Email: MabudaL @dwa.gov.za

Mrs TS Mbedzi Cell 072 442 8166
Community Councillor
Thulamela Local Municipality

 Ms Sithembile Mhlanga
 TEL
 015 519 3156

 Makhado Local Municipality
 FAX
 015 516 6149

 Private Bag X2596
 CELL
 083 418 5429

 MAKHADO 0820
 CELL
 083 418 5429

Email: alfredk@makhado.gov.za

Mr Ralulmi Ndivhuwo Main 015 811 6300 Director: Water Services

Director: Water Services Mopani District Municipality Private Bag X9687 GIYANI 0826

Email: tim@mopani.gov.za

 Mr N Nepfumbada
 TEL
 (015) 962 7500

 Administrator/Traditional Coordinator
 FAX
 (015) 962-6389

 Thulamela Local Municipality
 CELL
 082 264 8718

Private Bag X5066 THOHOYANDOU 0950

Email: nepfumbadan@thulamela.gov.za

Mr Norman Nokeri Business Development Lepelle Northern Water Business Development Unit Private Bag X9522 POLOKWĂNE 0700

TEL (015) 295 1900 072 980 6959

Email: normann@lepelle.co.za

Mr Jan Potgieter Deputy Director Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries Private Bag X515 SILVERTON 0127

TEL 012 846 8579 FAX 012 846 8576 CELL 082 921 1507

janpo@daff.gov.za Email:

Mr Eddie Riddell Water Resources Manager SANPARKS Conservation Services

Cell 072 337 1274

edriddell@gmail.com Email:

Mr William van Jaarsveld Agri Limpopo

Main 015 307 2425

Email: info@agrilimpopo.co.za

Ms Sanet van Jaarsveld Engineer Department of Water and Sanitation Options Analysis (North) Pta Private Bag X313 PRETORIĂ 0001

TEL (012) 336-7284 FAX (012) 336 7399 CELL 079 510 8523 CELL

Email: vanjaarsvelds@dwa.gov.za

Mr Gustav van Veijeren Vice Chairman Letaba Water Use Association P O Box 299 LETSITELE 0885

FAX (015) 386 8753 CELL 083 271 1114

Email: grvv@mweb.co.za

Dr Freek Venter Head: Conservation Services South African National Parks Private Bag X402 SKUKUZA 1350

TEL (013) 735 4320 FAX (013) 735 4051 CELL 082 908 2687

Email: FreekV@sanparks.org

Mnr Pieter Vorster Voorsitter: Constantia WGV Water Gebruikersvereniging/Mahela Boerdery:

TEL 015 345 1600/250 015 345 1601 CELL 083 259 5511

Constantia Posbus 114 LETSITELE 0885

Email: pieter@mahela.co.za